

OK as is

## School Board

### Exhibit - Waiver and Modification Request Resource Guide

Waiver or Modification	Explanation, Special Considerations, and Resources
<p>Exemptions from Unfunded Mandates, 105 ILCS 5/22-60.</p>	<p><b>Explanation</b></p> <p>Applies to unfunded or under-funded: (1) mandates in the School Code enacted after 8-20-10, or (2) regulatory mandates promulgated by the Ill. State Board of Education (ISBE) and adopted by rule after 8-20-10, other than those promulgated with respect to 105 ILCS 5/22-60 or statutes already enacted on or before 8-20-10.</p> <p>Allows the District to petition its Regional Superintendent or <del>an Suburban Cook County</del> Intermediate Service Center <u>Executive Director</u>, whichever is appropriate, to request exemption from implementing the mandate in school(s) in the next school year.</p> <p><b>Special Considerations</b></p> <ol style="list-style-type: none"> <li>1. Whether the significance of the unfunded or under-funded mandate justifies the effort needed to seek an exemption, and</li> <li>2. The advisability of simultaneously seeking a waiver or modification using <u>Section 105 ILCS 5/2-3.25g</u> (see <i>Explanation</i> section in the row below).</li> </ol> <p><b>Resources</b></p> <p>ISBE Rules and Waivers division at:  <a href="http://www.isbe.net/Pages/Waivers.aspx">www.isbe.net/Pages/Waivers.aspx</a>, (217) 782-5270, or <a href="mailto:waivers@isbe.net">waivers@isbe.net</a>.</p>
<p>School Code Mandates and ISBE Rules, 105 ILCS 5/2-3.25g, <u>amended by 104-391, amended by P.A. 100-465</u>; 23 Ill.Admin.Code §1.100.</p>	<p><b>Explanation</b></p> <p>There are two options for the District (explanations are listed below each option):</p> <p><b>Option 1: Petition ISBE</b> for a <i>waiver</i> of School Code mandates; ISBE forwards the petition for waiver to the Ill. General Assembly for consideration in its next-scheduled report.</p> <p><b>Option 2: Petition ISBE</b> for one or more of the following:</p> <ol style="list-style-type: none"> <li>1. A <i>modification</i> of the mandates in the School Code (this is different than asking for a <i>waiver</i> of mandates in the School Code).</li> </ol>

Waiver or Modification	Explanation, Special Considerations, and Resources
	<p>2. A <i>waiver</i> of ISBE administrative rules.</p> <p>3. A <i>modification</i> of ISBE administrative rules.</p> <p>For <b>Option 1</b>, a <i>waiver of mandates in the School Code</i>, the District must demonstrate that the waiver is necessary to: (a) stimulate innovation; (b) improve student performance; or (c) it can address the intent of the mandate in a more effective, efficient, or economical manner. 105 ILCS 5/2-3.25g, <del>amended by P.A. 100-465</del>, and 23 Ill.Admin.Code §1.100, list and describe mandates from which school districts may not seek a <i>waiver</i> or <i>modification</i>.</p> <p>For <b>Option 2</b>, a <i>modification of the mandates in the School Code and/or a waiver or modification of administrative rules</i>, the District must demonstrate that: (1) it can address the intent of the rule or mandate in a more effective, efficient, or economical manner; or (2) the waiver or modification is necessary to stimulate innovation or improve student performance.</p> <p>The District must also provide certain notices as follows:</p> <ol style="list-style-type: none"> <li>1. Publish a notice in a newspaper of general circulation within the District of the time, date, place, and general subject matter of a public hearing on the proposed waiver or modification request. This notice must be published at least seven days before the hearing.</li> <li>2. If there is no newspaper published in the county, give notice in a secular newspaper published in an adjoining county having general circulation within the District. 715 ILCS 5/2, <del>amended by P.A. 100-72</del>, and <del>715 ILCS 5/5</del>.</li> <li>3. Post the time, date, place, and general subject matter of the public hearing on the District's website at least 14 days before the hearing.</li> <li>4. Notify, electronically or in writing, the affected exclusive bargaining agent(s) and the District's State legislators of the District's intent to seek approval of a waiver or modification and of the hearing to be held to take testimony from staff. This notice must occur at least seven days before the hearing, and the affected exclusive bargaining agent(s) shall be allowed to attend the public hearing. 105 ILCS 5/2-3.25g(c-5), <del>amended by P.A. 100-782</del>.</li> </ol> <p>Check the ISBE website listed below in the <i>Special Considerations</i> section for changes in notice requirements.</p> <p><b>Special Considerations</b></p>



Waiver or Modification	Explanation, Special Considerations, and Resources
	<p>The District must develop a plan supporting a waiver or modification request that meets the criteria in 105 ILCS 5/2-3.25g. See <a href="http://www.isbe.net/Pages/Overview-of-the-Waiver-Process.aspx">www.isbe.net/Pages/Overview-of-the-Waiver-Process.aspx</a>. 105 ILCS 5/2-3.25g; 23 Ill.Admin.Code §1.100.</p> <p><b>Resources</b></p> <p>ISBE rules at:</p> <p>23 Ill.Admin.Code §1.100 (<i>Waiver and Modification of State Board Rules and School Code Mandates</i>)</p> <p>23 Ill.Admin.Code §1.110 (<i>Appeal Process Under Section 22-60 of the School Code</i>)</p> <p>ISBE waivers at: <a href="http://www.isbe.net/Pages/Waivers.aspx">www.isbe.net/Pages/Waivers.aspx</a></p> <p>Waiver overview at: <a href="http://www.isbe.net/Pages/Overview-of-the-Waiver-Process.aspx">www.isbe.net/Pages/Overview-of-the-Waiver-Process.aspx</a></p> <p>Instructions at: <a href="http://www.isbe.net/Pages/Waiver-Application.aspx">www.isbe.net/Pages/Waiver-Application.aspx</a></p> <p>Application form at: <a href="http://www.isbe.net/documents/33-77_waiver_application.pdf">www.isbe.net/documents/33-77_waiver_application.pdf</a></p>
<p>Physical Education, 105 ILCS 5/27-7106, <del>amendrenumbered by P.A. 100-465</del> <u>P.A. 104-391</u>.</p> <p>Driver Education, 105 ILCS 5/27-81524.2, <del>renumbered by P.A. 104-391</del> and 105 ILCS 5/2-3.25g, <del>amended by P.A. 104-391, amended by P.A. 100-465</del>.</p>	<p><b>Explanation</b></p> <p>See the <i>Explanation</i> section in the row above.</p> <p><b>Special Considerations</b></p> <p>In addition to the <i>Explanation</i> section above:</p> <ol style="list-style-type: none"> <li>1. <b>Physical education</b> is managed as a <i>waiver</i> of School Code mandates discussed in the <i>Explanation</i> section above. A waiver of this School Code mandate may be in effect for up to five years. Recent legislative changes removed any cap applicable to renewal of waivers related to physical education.</li> <li>2. <b>Driver education fee increases</b> require the District to include the proposed amount of the fee increase: (a) in the public notice; and (b) on the District's website. 105 ILCS 5/2-3.25g(c-5). <b>Note:</b> For a sample school district resolution to increase driver education fees, see 4:140-E3, <i>Resolution to Increase Driver Education Fees</i>.</li> </ol> <p><b>Resources</b></p> <p>See the <i>Resources</i> section in the row above.</p>
Holidays, 105 ILCS 5/24-2(b).	<p><b>Explanation</b></p> <p>Allows the District to hold school or schedule teachers' institutes, parent-teacher conferences, or staff</p>

Waiver or Modification	Explanation, Special Considerations, and Resources
	<p>development on certain holidays without submitting a modification request to and obtaining approval from ISBE.</p> <p>After a public hearing, the District may hold school or schedule teachers' institutes, parent-teacher conferences, or staff development on:</p> <ol style="list-style-type: none"> <li>1. The third Monday in January (Dr. Martin Luther King, Jr.'s Birthday);</li> <li>2. February 12 (President Abraham Lincoln's Birthday);</li> <li>3. The first Monday in March (Casimir Pulaski Day);</li> <li>4. The second Monday in October (Columbus Day); and/or</li> <li>5. November 11 (Veterans Day).</li> </ol> <p><b>Special Considerations</b></p> <p>The Board must provide notice before the public hearing to both educators and parents/guardians with: (1) the time, date, and place of the hearing; (2) a description of the proposal; and (3) information that testimony from educators and parents/guardians will be taken about the proposal during the hearing.</p> <p>The District must prepare a proposal for recognizing the person(s) honored by the holiday through instructional activities conducted on that day or, if the day is not used for student attendance, on the first school day preceding or following that day. The District may also consider aligning the proposal with Board policies 5:200, <i>Terms and Conditions of Employment and Dismissal</i>; 5:330, <i>Sick Days, Vacation, Holidays, and Leaves</i>; and 6:20, <i>School Year Calendar and Day</i>.</p> <p><b>Resources</b></p> <p>See the tab labeled <i>Waivers and modifications no longer needed for legal school holiday requests, most parent-teacher conference schedules</i> on ISBE's website at: <a href="http://www.isbe.net/Pages/Modifications-of-the-School-Codes-and-Rules-of-the-State-Board.aspx">www.isbe.net/Pages/Modifications-of-the-School-Codes-and-Rules-of-the-State-Board.aspx</a>.</p>
<p>Parent-Teacher Conferences (Attendance Calculation), 105 ILCS 5/10-19.05(d), <del>added by P.A. 101-12.</del></p>	<p>The District is allowed to count a parent-teacher conference as a full day of attendance under any of the following configurations:</p> <ol style="list-style-type: none"> <li>1. A minimum of five clock-hours of parent-teacher conferences;</li> <li>2. Both a minimum of two clock-hours of parent-teacher conferences held in the evening following a full day of student attendance, and a minimum of three clock-</li> </ol>



Waiver or Modification	Explanation, Special Considerations, and Resources
	<p>hours of parent-teacher conferences held on the day immediately following evening parent-teacher conferences; or</p> <p>3. Multiple parent-teacher conferences held in the evenings following full days of student attendance, in which the time used for the parent-teacher conferences is equivalent to a minimum of five clock-hours.</p> <p><b>Special Considerations</b></p> <p>Any other options for counting a parent-teacher conference as a full day of attendance not covered by the language above will require a waiver request to the General Assembly for its consideration.</p> <p>The above clock-hour requirements do not apply if the Governor declares a disaster due to a public health emergency pursuant to 20 ILCS 3305/7 and the State Superintendent of Education may establish minimum clock-hour requirements under 105 ILCS 5/10-30. 105 ILCS 5/10-19.05(j-5), <i>added by P.A. 101-643</i>.</p> <p><b>Resources</b></p> <p>See the tab labeled <i>Waivers and modifications no longer needed for legal school holiday requests, most parent-teacher conference schedules</i> on ISBE's website at: <a href="http://www.isbe.net/Pages/Modifications-of-the-School-Codes-and-Rules-of-the-State-Board.aspx">www.isbe.net/Pages/Modifications-of-the-School-Codes-and-Rules-of-the-State-Board.aspx</a>.</p>

## School Board

### Exhibit - Immediately Available District Public Records and Web-Posted Reports and Records<sup>1</sup>

[For use by only those ~~D~~istricts that have websites.]

The District's Freedom of Information Officer designates the public records that are listed in this table as being immediately available to the public. The records that are asterisked (\*) are posted on the District's website and may be immediately inspected, downloaded, printed, and/or copied. Any asterisked public record is also immediately available for inspection or copying upon request at the District's administrative office during its regular business hours, provided any applicable fees are paid. Unless otherwise noted in the special instructions column, records not asterisked (\*) will be provided within five business days as allowed by the Freedom of Information Act, provided any applicable fees are paid.

Web-posted records and information (use of an * is explained in the paragraph above this table)	Web-posting statutory reference and special instructions
<p>*Annual schedule of regular meetings for the current school year that are posted at the beginning of each calendar or fiscal year</p> <p>*Public notice of each Board meeting that is posted at least 48 hours before the meeting and remains posted until the meeting is concluded</p> <p>*Agenda of each regular meeting that is posted at least 48 hours before a meeting and remains posted until the meeting is concluded</p> <p><b>Note:</b> For school districts that do not post board meeting notices and/or agendas on a website (because they do not</p>	5 ILCS 120/2.02.

The footnotes should be removed before the material is used.

<sup>1</sup> This exhibit has two purposes: (1) to identify the data and documents that must be posted on a district's website, if the district has a website; and (2) to fulfill the requirement in the Freedom of Information Act (FOIA) for the district's FOIA officer to designate the public records that are immediately available to the public. 5 ILCS 140/3.5(a). Many attorneys agree that using the required items for web-posting is an easy and practical way for the FOIA Officer to develop a list of public records that are *immediately available*. Some attorneys prefer that the district also retain copies of its web-posted public records for immediate inspection and/or copying upon request at the administrative office. The introductory paragraph manages this issue by indicating that copies of certain identified public records will also be immediately available in the district's administrative office. This exhibit suggests identifying public records for immediate availability that are easily reproduced and stored, i.e., not voluminous. The FOIA Officer should customize this list as appropriate to the district's circumstances.

Districts may respond to a FOIA request for a public record published on the district website by directing the requester to the website. However, if the requester is unable to reasonably access the record, the requester may re-submit his or her request, and the district must then make the record available for inspection and copying. See 5 ILCS 140/8.5; see also reference in Ill. Public Access Counselor binding opinion 10-1. Consult the board attorney for ideas to manage the district's specific FOIA compliance issues.



Web-posted records and information (use of an * is explained in the paragraph above this table)	Web-posting statutory reference and special instructions
have a website maintained by a full-time staff member), the notice and agenda must be continuously available for public review during the entire 48-hour period preceding the meeting	
*Official open meeting minutes that are posted within 10 days of the Board's approval and remain posted for at least 60 days (required if the District has a website maintained by a full-time staff member)	5 ILCS 120/2.06(b).
*Description of the District and its records including: Summary of the District's purpose Functional subdivisions Total amount of operating budget Number and location of all of its separate offices Approximate number of full- and part-time employees (see also, salary and benefits information report for the Superintendent, administrators, and teachers, District's Statement of Affairs) Identification and membership of the Board Brief description of the methods whereby the public may request information and public records Directory information for the Freedom of Information Officer Address where requests for public records should be directed Fees	5 ILCS 140/4.  The District must prominently post the list at each administrative office and make it available for inspection and copying.
*A hyperlink to an email address(es) for members of the public to communicate with members of the Board	50 ILCS 205/20.  The hyperlink must be easily accessible from the District's home page.
Annual budget for current fiscal year, itemized by receipts and expenditures	105 ILCS 5/17-1.2.  This may be accomplished using the Ill. State Board of Education (ISBE) <i>School</i>

Web-posted records and information (use of an * is explained in the paragraph above this table)	Web-posting statutory reference and special instructions
	<p><i>District Budget Form</i> (50-36) or the summary pages from it.<sup>2</sup></p> <p>The District must notify its students' parents/guardians when the budget is web-posted along with its website address.</p>
<p>*Notice of a public hearing under the Truth in Taxation Law, when applicable (required if the District has a website maintained by a full-time staff member)</p>	<p>35 ILCS 200/18-75, amended by P.A. 103-1018. The notice on the website must be posted for at least 30 consecutive days on or near the top of the District's website home page or on a page accessible through a direct link from the home page. The notice must be posted not more than 14 days nor less than seven days prior to the date of the public hearing. <i>Id.</i> at 18-80.</p>
<p>*Notice of public hearing on waiver or modification of a School Code mandate, when applicable</p>	<p>105 ILCS 5/2-3.25g(c-5). The time, date, place, and general subject matter of the public hearing must be posted at least 14 days prior to the hearing. If the District is requesting to increase the fee charged for driver education authorized pursuant to 105 ILCS 5/7-24.2, the website information must include the proposed amount of the fee the District will request. See 2:20-E, <i>Waiver and Modification Request Resource Guide</i>.</p>
<p>*District Report Card and a Report Card for each School (the Report Cards will be provided by ISBE by Oct. 31 of each year, unless otherwise provided by law)</p>	<p>105 ILCS 5/10-17a.</p> <p>Annually, no more than 30 calendar days after receiving the Report Cards from the State Superintendent, the District must: (1) present them at a regular Board meeting, (2) post them on the District's website, (3) make them available to a newspaper of general circulation serving the District, and (4) upon request, send them home to parents/guardians. 105 ILCS 5/10-17a(5).</p>

The footnotes should be removed before the material is used.

<sup>2</sup> For school officials who are concerned that some of their district's constituents may not have the proper software to access these documents, ISBE provides links to free *viewer or reader* products that support the ISBE School District Budget Form (50-36). These products can be downloaded and used to access the budget as posted on the district's website. See [www.isbe.net/Pages/School-District-Joint-Agreement.aspx](http://www.isbe.net/Pages/School-District-Joint-Agreement.aspx).



Web-posted records and information (use of an * is explained in the paragraph above this table)	Web-posting statutory reference and special instructions
	The District also must send a written notice home to parents/guardians stating: (1) that the Report Cards are available on the website, (2) the website's address, (3) that a printed copy will be sent upon request, and (4) the telephone number to request a printed copy. <u>Id.</u>
*Hyperlink to ISBE's Expanded High School Snapshot Report	105 ILCS 5/10-17a(7), added by P.A. 103-503. The hyperlink must be displayed in a manner that is easily accessible to the public. ISBE is required to prepare a stand-alone report covering high schools beginning 10-31-27 and by Oct. 31 of each subsequent year.
*The District's discipline plan and progress on the plan, in the event the District is identified by ISBE to be in the top 20% (for three consecutive years) of districts for out-of-school suspensions, out-of-school expulsions, or racial disproportionality in the use of out-of-school suspensions and expulsions	105 ILCS 5/2-3.162. If the District is required to submit a plan to ISBE, it must be approved at a public board meeting and posted on the District's website. Within one year after being identified by ISBE, the District must submit to ISBE and post on its website a progress report describing implementation of the plan and the results achieved.
*A list of all contracts in excess of \$25,000 and any contracts with an exclusive bargaining representative	105 ILCS 5/10-20.44-, <u>amended by P.A. 104-261, eff. 1-1-26.</u> <del>There is no statutory timeline for web-posting.</del> Each year, <u>before Dec. 1, and in conjunction with the submission publication of the Statement of Affairs to ISBE on the District's website and in a newspaper of general circulation, before Dec. 1, the District must submit to ISBE shall include</u> an annual report on all contracts over \$25,000 awarded during the previous fiscal year.
*Contract(s) with any commercial driver training school(s) for driver education	105 ILCS 5/27- <del>815</del> <u>24.2, renumbered by P.A. 104-391.</u> The District is required to web-post this document if it has a website. If the District

Web-posted records and information (use of an * is explained in the paragraph above this table)	Web-posting statutory reference and special instructions
	has no website, it must make the contract available upon request.
*Annual Statement of Affairs	105 ILCS 5/10-17, <u>amended by P.A. 104-261, eff. 1-1-26.</u>  <u>Annually by Dec. 1, the District is not required to web-post this document. It must, annually by Dec. 1, submit the Statement to ISBE for posting on ISBE's website, have copies of the Statement available in the main administrative office, must post its statement of affairs on its website and publish a summary of the Statement in a newspaper of general circulation published in the District.</u>
*Fiscal Efficiency Report, summarizing the District's attempts to improve fiscal efficiency through shared services or outsourcing in the prior fiscal year	105 ILCS 5/17-1.1.  The report must be: (1) approved by the Board at an open meeting, <sup>3</sup> and (2) primarily in checklist form and approximately one page in length.
Beginning in levy year 2022, if the District has an aggregate property tax levy greater than \$5,000,000, it will make good faith efforts to electronically publish the following data from all vendors and subcontractors doing business with the District:  Whether the vendor or subcontractor is minority-owned, women-owned, or veteran-owned  Whether the vendor or subcontractor holds a certification as a minority-owned, women-owned, or veteran-owned business as defined in 30 ILCS 575/, or if they are self-certifying; and  If the vendor self-certifies, whether it qualifies as a small business under federal Small Business Administration	35 ILCS 200/18-50.2.  The law does not define <i>electronically publish</i> ; website posting is a means of compliance. This item is not asterisked should the District choose to electronically publish the information offline.

The footnotes should be removed before the material is used.

<sup>3</sup> 105 ILCS 5/17-1.1 specifies that the report must be approved by the board at an "open meeting that allows for public comment." The public comment qualification is omitted here because it is redundant; all open meetings must have a period during which the public can offer comments. See sample policy 2:230, *Public Participation at School Board Meetings and Petitions to the Board*. This report is included in a district's annual financial report as the *Report on Shared Services or Outsourcing*. See [www.isbe.net/Pages/Annual-Financial-Report.aspx](http://www.isbe.net/Pages/Annual-Financial-Report.aspx).



Web-posted records and information (use of an * is explained in the paragraph above this table)	Web-posting statutory reference and special instructions
standards (See <a href="http://www.sba.gov/federal-contracting/contracting-guide/size-standards">www.sba.gov/federal-contracting/contracting-guide/size-standards</a> ).	
*Notice of a public hearing at which the Board will consider closing a school, when applicable	105 ILCS 5/10-22.13. The notice of the public hearing must be provided at least 10 days prior to the hearing and include the time, date, place, and name or description of the school building that the Board is considering closing.
<p>*Explanation of the data elements of <i>covered information</i><sup>4</sup> that the District collects, maintains, or discloses to any person, entity, third party, or governmental agency.</p> <p>*A description of the procedures<sup>5</sup> that parents/guardians may use to carry out their rights under 105 ILCS 85/33(c)(1), (2), &amp; (3), including the right to:</p> <p>Inspect and review their child's covered information</p> <p>Request a paper or electronic copy of their child's covered information</p> <p>Request corrections for factual inaccuracies contained in their child's covered information</p>	<p>105 ILCS 85/27(a)(1).</p> <p>The explanation of data elements of covered information must be clear and understandable by a layperson and cover the following: (1) how the District uses the covered information; (2) to whom or what entities the District discloses the covered information; and (3) for what purpose the District discloses the covered information.</p> <p>The explanation of data elements and description of parent rights procedures must be updated by Jan. 31 and July 31 each year, as needed.</p>
<p>*A list of operators with whom the District has written agreements and the following for each operator:</p> <p>Copy of the agreement</p> <p>Business address</p> <p>List of any subcontractors to whom covered information may be disclosed or a link to a page on the operator's website that clearly lists the subcontractors</p>	<p>105 ILCS 85/27(a)(2) &amp; (3).</p> <p>The District must post new operator contracts and an explanation of the data elements of covered information disclosed to the operator (see immediate row above) within 10 business days after entering into the contract. 105 ILCS 85/27(c).</p>

The footnotes should be removed before the material is used.

<sup>4</sup> *Covered information* means personally identifiable information or material (PII) or information linked to PII in any media or format that is not publicly available and is any of the following: (1) created by or provided to an operator by a student or the student's parent/guardian in the course of the student's/guardian's use of the operator's site, service or application for K-12 school purposes; (2) created by or provided to an operator by an employee or agent of the District; or (3) gathered by an operator through the operation of its site, service, or application. 105 ILCS 85/5. *Operators* are entities that operate Internet websites, online services, online applications, or mobile applications that are designed, marketed, and used for K-12 school purposes. *Id.* See sample administrative procedure 7:345-AP, *Use of Educational Technologies; Student Data Privacy and Security*, for additional information regarding posting requirements under Student Online Personal Protection Act, 105 ILCS 85/, and sample exhibit 7:345-AP, E1, *Student Covered Information Reporting Form*, for a sample reporting format.

<sup>5</sup> See sample exhibit 7:345-AP, E4, *Notice of Parent Rights Regarding Student Covered Information*. Districts may choose to, but are not required to, include a description of these procedures in a student handbook.

Web-posted records and information (use of an * is explained in the paragraph above this table)	Web-posting statutory reference and special instructions
	This list must also be updated by Jan. 31 and July 31 each year, as needed.
<p>*A list of <i>breaches</i> of covered information maintained by the school or an operator involving 10% or more of the District's student enrollment. The list must include:</p> <p>Number of students whose covered information was involved in the breach, unless the breach involved <i>personal information</i> as defined in the Personal Information Protection Act, 815 ILCS 530/5, in which case the number of students involved may not be disclosed</p> <p>Date, estimated date, or estimated date range of the breach</p> <p>Name of the operator, if applicable</p>	<p>105 ILCS 85/27(a)(5).</p> <p>The District must update breach information by Jan. 31 and July 31 each year, and it must remain on the District's website for at least five years after the District adds it to the list. Breaches that occurred (or were estimated to have occurred) prior to 7-1-21 or breaches that were posted more than five years prior to updating the current list do not need to be posted. <sup>6</sup></p>
<p>*Board policy 7:180, <i>Prevention of and Response to Bullying, Intimidation, and Harassment</i></p> <p>*Information developed as a result of the evaluation and assessment of the bullying policy's outcomes and effectiveness</p>	<p>105 ILCS 5/22-1107-23.7(b)(10) and (11), <a href="#">renumbered by P.A. 104-391</a>.</p>
<p>*Contact information for the District's Title IX Coordinator(s) and Board policies 2:260, <i>Uniform Grievance Procedure</i>; and 2:265, <i>Title IX Grievance Procedure</i></p>	<p>34 C.F.R. §106.8.</p>
<p>Training materials for any individuals designated as Title IX Coordinator(s), investigators, decision-makers, and informal resolution facilitators</p>	<p>34 C.F.R. §106.45(b)(10)(i)(D).</p> <p>Naming only the training provider and course does not meet this requirement. The U.S. Dept. of Education (DOE) requires training materials to be publicly available "so that a district's approach to training Title IX personnel may be transparently viewed by the [district's] educational community and the public, including for the purpose of holding a [district] accountable for using training materials</p>

The footnotes should be removed before the material is used.

<sup>6</sup> 105 ILCS 85/27(d) states that individual notification to the parent/guardian of a child whose covered information was breached may be delayed if a law enforcement agency determines that notification will interfere with a criminal investigation and provides the District with a written request for a delay of notice. This basis for delay does not specifically apply to the more general website notification of a breach, however, such a delay may also be warranted depending upon the circumstances. Consult the board attorney for guidance on this issue.



Web-posted records and information (use of an * is explained in the paragraph above this table)	Web-posting statutory reference and special instructions
	that comply with [Title IX] regulations.” 85 Fed. Reg. 30254. Consult the Board Attorney regarding this requirement; making training materials of third-party consultants publicly available may violate their intellectual property rights. The DOE acknowledged the potential for intellectual property violations, suggesting that districts either “secure permission from the consultant to publish the training materials” or create their own training materials. 85 Fed. Reg. 30412.
*Board policy 7:20, <i>Harassment of Students Prohibited</i> , and age-appropriate explanations of its contents in student handbook(s)	105 ILCS 5/10-20.69.  The District must have an age-appropriate policy on sexual harassment (1) in the student handbook(s), (2) posted on the District’s website, and (3) posted in any other area where policies, rules and standards of conduct are posted in each school.
*Board policy 7:255, <i>Students Who are Parents, Expectant Parents, or Victims of Domestic or Sexual Violence</i> , and procedures for requesting supportive services	105 ILCS 5/26A-20(d), added by P.A. 102-466, a/k/a <i>Ensuring Success in School Law</i> , eff. 7-1-25. Copies must be made available to students and parent(s)/guardian(s) at no cost at each school.  Procedures for requesting supportive services that are available at the building level and on building-specific websites should include the building-level Article 26A Resource Person's name and contact information. See administrative procedure 7:255-AP1, <i>Supporting Students Who are Parents, Expectant Parents, or Victims of Domestic or Sexual Violence</i> .
*Board policy 7:290, <i>Suicide and Depression Awareness and Prevention</i>	105 ILCS 5/2-3.166.
*Contact information for the National Suicide Prevention Lifeline (988), <del>and the</del> Crisis Text Line (Text 741741), <del>and the Safe2Help Illinois helpline (Call 844-4-SAFEIL or Text SAFE2 to 72332)</del> if the District does not issue	105 ILCS 5/10-20.81, amended by P.A.s 103-143 <del>and 104-264</del> , eff. 1-1-26.

Web-posted records and information (use of an * is explained in the paragraph above this table)	Web-posting statutory reference and special instructions
student identification cards to all students <a href="#">in grades 6-12 or school employees serving those grades</a>	
*Administrator and Teacher Salary and Benefits Report (itemized salary report for the Superintendent and all administrators and teachers); <i>benefits</i> includes, without limitation, vacation days, sick days, bonuses, annuities, and retirement enhancements	105 ILCS 5/10-20.47. <sup>7</sup> Annually on or before Oct. 1: (1) the information must be presented at a regular Board meeting and posted on the District's website, and (2) after the Board meeting at which the information was presented, the Report must be provided to ISBE.
All records pertaining to the creation, alteration or revision of school attendance areas shall be open to the public	105 ILCS 5/10-21.3. This law also requires school attendance areas to be periodically revised, if necessary, to prevent or eliminate segregation by color, race, or nationality. See Board policy 7:30, <i>Student Assignment and Intra-District Transfer</i> .
*Vacancies for teaching positions in a subject shortage area, before hiring a retired teacher to any such position	40 ILCS 5/16-150.1, amended by P.A. 103-588. The District must, on an ongoing basis, post the vacancy for a period of at least 90 days during the six months preceding either the fall or spring term for which it seeks to employ a retired teacher in a subject shortage area. This posting requirement is in effect for employment ending no later than June 30, 2027.
*Information regarding a Severance Agreement entered into because an employee or contractor was found to have engaged in sexual harassment or sexual discrimination	50 ILCS 205/3c. Within 72 hours of Board approval, the District must post: (1) the name/title of person receiving payment under the severance agreement, (2) the amount of payment, (3) that the employee or contractor was found to have engaged in sexual harassment or sexual discrimination, as applicable, and (4) the

The footnotes should be removed before the material is used.

<sup>7</sup> 105 ILCS 5/10-20.47 does not specify whether a district must provide employee names as part of its salary and benefits report. The general practice of districts has been to include names in the report. Consult the board attorney for guidance.



Web-posted records and information (use of an * is explained in the paragraph above this table)	Web-posting statutory reference and special instructions
	<p>date, time, and location of the meeting at which the agreement was approved.</p> <p><b>Note:</b> The Government Severance Pay Act (GSPA), 5 ILCS 415/10(a)(2), prohibits an employee of a school district with contract provisions for severance pay from receiving any severance if the employee is fired by the board for <i>misconduct</i>, which includes sexual harassment and/or discrimination. <i>Id.</i> at 415/5. For more discussion about <del>the</del>-reconciling these laws, see f/n 7 in sample policy 2:260, <i>Uniform Grievance Procedure</i>.</p>
<p>*As an employer that participates in the Ill. Municipal Retirement Fund (IMRF), a compensation report for employees who have a total compensation package that exceeds \$75,000 per year; <i>total compensation package</i> means salary, health insurance, a housing allowance, a vehicle allowance, a clothing allowance, bonuses, loans, vacation days granted, and sick days granted</p>	<p>5 ILCS 120/7.3.</p> <p>The report must be posted within six business days after the District approves a budget. The District may choose to post a physical copy of this information at its principal office in lieu of posting the information directly on the website in which case it must post directions on the website for accessing that information.</p> <p>The Ill. Attorney General's office has not provided guidance concerning whether this requirement applies to employees who do not participate in IMRF, e.g., Teachers' Retirement System (TRS) participants.</p>
<p>*As an employer that participates in the IMRF, a compensation report for employees who have a total compensation package that is equal to or in excess of \$150,000 per year; total compensation package means payment by the employer to the employee for salary, health insurance, a housing allowance, a vehicle allowance, a clothing allowance, bonuses, loans, vacation days granted, and sick days granted</p>	<p>5 ILCS 120/7.3.</p> <p>The report must be posted at least six days before the District approves an employee's total compensation package that is equal to or in excess of \$150,000. The District may choose to post a physical copy of this information at its principal office in lieu of posting the information directly on the website in which case it must post directions on the website for accessing that information.</p> <p>The Ill. Attorney General's office has not provided guidance concerning whether this requirement applies to employees who do</p>

Web-posted records and information (use of an * is explained in the paragraph above this table)	Web-posting statutory reference and special instructions
	not participate in IMRF, e.g., TRS participants.
*As an employer that participates in IMRF, a link to information posted on the IMRF website at: <a href="http://www.imrf.org/en/about-imrf/transparency/employer-cost-and-participation-information">www.imrf.org/en/about-imrf/transparency/employer-cost-and-participation-information</a>	40 ILCS 5/7-135.5.
*Board policy 5:120, <i>Employee Ethics; Code of Professional Conduct; and Conflict of Interest</i>	105 ILCS 5/22-85.5(e).
*A description of activities to address intergroup conflict (an optional program authorized by 105 ILCS 27-23.6)	105 ILCS 5/27- <del>105023.6</del> (c), <a href="#">renumbered by P.A. 104-391</a> .
The total number of personnel with a school support personnel endorsement, and for each endorsement area: <ol style="list-style-type: none"> <li>1. Those actively employed by the District on a full-time basis;</li> <li>2. Those actively employed by the District on a part-time basis; and</li> <li>3. Those actively employed by a special education cooperative providing services to students in the District</li> </ol>	105 ILCS 5/10-20.80. Annually by Dec. 1, the District must report its school support personnel information as of Oct. 1 to ISBE and web-post it.
The total number of students enrolled in the District and of that total, the number of students with an individualized education program (IEP) or Section 504 plan	105 ILCS 5/2-3.182. Annually by Dec. 1, ISBE must make the enrollment information available on its website based on the District's enrollment information as of Oct. 1.
*Notice that students with disabilities who do not qualify for an IEP may qualify for services under Section 504	105 ILCS 5/14-6.01. The notice shall: (1) identify the location and phone number of the District office or employee to whom inquiries about the identification, assessment, and placement of children with disabilities should be directed, and (2) inform parents/guardians who are deaf or do not typically communicate using spoken English that they are entitled to the services of an interpreter when participating in a Section 504 meeting.
*Class size reporting that includes the information described in 105 ILCS 5/2-3.136a:	105 ILCS 5/10-20.70. Annually, the District must report its class size information, which ISBE must make available on its website by Jan. 31 (see



Web-posted records and information (use of an * is explained in the paragraph above this table)	Web-posting statutory reference and special instructions
<ol style="list-style-type: none"> <li>1. The total number of <i>teachers</i> actively employed in the District, listed by individual school;</li> <li>2. The <i>pupil-teacher ratio</i> for the District;</li> <li>3. The number of <i>class instructors</i>, by grade level and subject;</li> <li>4. The <i>class size</i> for each <i>class</i> and <i>class section</i> at each school in the District and the total number of classes or class sections in each school that exceed the class size guidelines under 105 ILCS 5/18-8.15(b)(2) (evidence-based funding core teacher ratios).</li> </ol>	<a href="http://www.isbe.net/Pages/class-size-report.aspx">www.isbe.net/Pages/class-size-report.aspx</a> ). See 105 ILCS 5/2-3.136a for definitions of the italicized terms.
<p>*Names of Board members who have completed professional development leadership training</p>	<p>105 ILCS 5/10-16a requires the District to post on its website the names of all Board members who have completed professional development leadership training. The web-posting may be expanded to log all Board members' training and development activities.</p> <p>5 ILCS 120/1.05(b) and (c) require each Board member to complete training on the Open Meetings Act. After completing the training, each Board member must file a copy of their certificate of completion with the Board.</p> <p>105 ILCS 5/24-16.5 requires each Board member to complete a training program on performance evaluations before voting on a dismissal based on a performance evaluation pursuant to the Performance Evaluation Reform Act.</p>
<p>Immunization data <del>reported to ISBE by each Nov. 15</del></p>	<p>105 ILCS 5/22-<del>1057-8.1</del>(6), <a href="#">renumbered by P.A. 104-391</a>.</p> <p>By Dec. 1, the District must annually make the immunization <i>data</i> that it must report to ISBE <a href="#">by Nov. 15</a> each year publicly available. The data, not its format, must be identical to the data reported to ISBE. Boards have control over the method(s) used to make this data publicly available. One method is to instruct the reader to ask for the data directly from ISBE.</p>

Web-posted records and information (use of an * is explained in the paragraph above this table)	Web-posting statutory reference and special instructions
Information on mental health issues and local treatment resources	The Ill. House of Representatives encouraged this in HR 478 (99th General Assembly, 5-31-15).
*All reliable assessments, scored by entities other than the District that are administered in each of the District's schools	105 ILCS 5/22-82(b). These must be made available to parents and/or guardians through the District's website or paper handouts.
*The District's Remote and/or Blended Remote Learning Day Plan, when the Governor has declared a public health emergency pursuant to 20 ILCS 3305/7.	105 ILCS 5/10-30(6).
<p>*When the Board allows for student participation in registered apprenticeship programs:</p> <ol style="list-style-type: none"> <li>1. Notification to students and parents of the opportunities for registered apprenticeships, which includes the following statements: <ol style="list-style-type: none"> <li>a. Students may participate in any registered apprenticeship program listed by the District, and</li> <li>b. Students may find a registered, but not listed, apprenticeship program with a business or organization if a registered apprenticeship program is not offered in the District.</li> </ol> </li> <li>2. Board policy 6:310, <i>High School Credit for Non-District Experiences; Course Substitutions; Re-Entering Students</i> (specifically, the section titled <b>Registered Apprenticeship Program</b>)</li> <li>3. A form for a parent/guardian to request that when their child successfully completes a registered apprenticeship program, it be substituted for a course</li> </ol>	23 Ill.Admin.Code §255.200(b)(4) and (c).
*If offered by the District, identification of the curriculum the District uses to provide comprehensive personal health and safety and comprehensive sexual health education (National Sex Education Standards (NSES)), the scope and sequence of these instructional materials, and the name and contact information, including an email address, of a school staff member who can respond to inquiries about instruction and materials	105 ILCS 5/27- <del>10159-4a</del> , <u>renumbered by P.A. 104-391</u> .



Web-posted records and information (use of an * is explained in the paragraph above this table)	Web-posting statutory reference and special instructions
*Board policy 6:135, <i>Accelerated Placement Program</i>	23 Ill.Admin.Code §227.60(a).
*Board policy 7:70, <i>Attendance and Truancy</i>	<a href="#">105 ILCS 5/10-19.05(k), amended by P.A. 104-250, eff. 1-1-26</a> ; 23 Ill.Admin.Code §207.20(b).
*Board policy 2:270, <i>Discrimination and Harassment on the Basis of Race, Color, and National Origin Prohibited</i>	105 ILCS 5/22-95, added by P.A. 103-472.
*The name(s) of designated Prioritization of Urgency of Need for Services (PUNS)-trained employee(s) in each school within the District.	105 ILCS 5/2-3.163(c), amended by P.A. 103-504.  Every public school must designate at least one employee to take the Ill. Dept. of Human Services' PUNS training. <i>Id.</i> See Board policy 5:100, <i>Staff Development Program</i> .
*If the District has one or more school buses equipped with an automated traffic law enforcement system, notice to drivers that its buses are so equipped.	625 ILCS 5/11-208.9(m).
*Type 1 diabetes informational material.	105 ILCS 5/2-3.204 <del>—(final citation pending)</del> , added by P.A. 103-641. The informational materials to be posted are those made available on ISBE's website.
*Local postsecondary and career expectations framework	105 ILCS 5/10-20.84(a). The framework must be available at a prominent location on the District's website.
<a href="#">*Informational materials about the Illinois Achieving a Better Life Experience (ABLE) account program established under the State Treasurer Act.</a>	<a href="#">105 ILCS 5/14-8.02i, amended by P.A. 104-314, eff. 1-1-26. The informational materials are distributed to the District by ISBE and must be posted by the District beginning with the 2026-2027 school year.</a>